Signal School Fact Sheet

The Beginning


The Army Signal School began in Fort Leavenworth, Kansas in 1905. It included the staff college, infantry and cavalry schools. The Chief Signal Officer, in a move to standardize signal communications throughout the Army and to consolidate Signal Corps installations, requested in August 1919 that the Adjutant General of the Army move all Signal Corps schools, both officer and enlisted, to Camp Vail (now Fort Monmouth). The Secretary of War approved the move in September 1919.

The first school commandant was Colonel George W. Helms, who had been serving as the fourth Commanding Officer of Camp Vail since June 1918.  He served concurrently as commandant of the Signal Corps School and Camp Vail's Commanding Officer until December 1920.  

Instruction in the new school began on 2 October. The initial curriculum consisted of the officers' division, subdivided into radio engineering, telegraph engineering, telephone engineering, signal organization, and supply.  The enlisted radio specialist course consisted of radio electricity, photography, meteorology, gas engine and motor vehicle operation. Electricity students were trained as telephone and telegraph electricians. There also were operator and clerical courses.  

1920s & 30s 

The Signal Corps School expanded in the 1920s as demands grew for communications training.  In June 1920, training of Reserve Officer Training Corps (ROTC) personnel developed into a major function of the school. The following year, training began for National Guard and Reserve officers. 

During 1922, the Officers' Division reorganized its courses into two main sections: a Company Officers' Course for Signal Corps Officers and a Basic Course in signal subjects for officers of other arms and services and for newly commissioned Signal officers.  Both sections were nine months in length.

Designed primarily for the training of Signal Corps personnel, the school now found itself educating men from several branches of the Army.  To eliminate confusion, the name of the school was officially changed in 1921 to reflect this expanded mission, becoming "The Signal School".  This title would be retained until 1935 when it would again become "The Signal Corps School".  

In 1922/23 the school was regrouped into four departments. These were Communications Engineering, Applied Communications, a General Instruction course for all officers; and the Department for Enlisted Specialists. The four hangars, which housed the aircraft of 1918, were now used as classrooms and workshops, since all aerial activity had ceased with the signing of the Armistice.  Such use was to continue well past World War II. 

  Hangar I became the center for radio instruction.  It was to be used for this purpose throughout World War II.  

Meteorological instruction was scheduled to begin in 1919 but necessary repairs to equipment damaged in shipment from France delayed the start of classes until 5 January 1920. Photographic instruction began in 1919; however, laboratory facilities did not become available until 1926.  Instruction in motion picture production techniques was initiated in 1930.  These courses, however, reverted to the Army War College in 1932.  

A training literature section was formed in 1921.  Its purpose was to supply the technical and field manuals needed to provide instruction in operations and maintenance of Signal Corps equipment.  The section remained as one of the major departments of the school until 1941 when its duties were taken over by the Signal Corps Publications Agency. 

In 1935, the Signal Corps School, which in 1921 had been changed to the Signal School to reflect its mission at that time, reverted to its original name as part of a reorganization.  

1940s & 50s

Just before the outbreak of WWII, the Signal Corps School was functioning with three well defined divisions: the officer’s department, enlisted Department, and the department of training literature.  When President Roosevelt proclaimed a state of limited emergency on 8 September 1939 the Signal School Commandant was advised that courses would not be continued for regular Army officers after February 1940.  A new one-month refresher class began in August 1940, which included:  aircraft warning, pigeons, radio communications, radio intelligence, photography and wire communications. 

The School was re-designated the Eastern Signal Corps School on 20 June 1942. Officer Candidate and Aircraft warning departments were added. 

The name of the school was changed back to the Signal Corps School on 19 June 1946 and changed again on May 1947 to the Signal School. 

In 1953 the Signal Corps Supply School at Fort Holabird, MD, was deactivated and the faculty was absorbed into Fort Monmouth. 

1960s & 70s

On 25 November 1966 the Commandant of the Signal School, Brigadier General Thomas M. Rienzi presented a special diploma to the 200,000th graduate of the School’s Enlisted Department – PFC Lloyd B. Hansen of Minot, ND, who had completed the twenty-eight week microwave radio repair course.  There were more to come.  At that time, the School anticipated fiscal year 1967 enrollments of 18,194 enlisted personnel and 2,124 officers.  To accommodate these students, many of the courses operated with three shifts a day.  As the war in Vietnam ratcheted down, so too did Signal School enrollments.  In FY 1970, the School admitted 14,139 students, enlisted and officers.

By 1972 the school had graduated approximately 53, 000 officers and 250, 00 enlisted in its 53 years of operation.

These numbers notwithstanding, the majority of the Signal Corps’ enlisted personnel trained during the war at Fort Gordon, not Fort Monmouth.  In July 1973 the Army placed its branch schools under the jurisdiction of the newly-created Training and Doctrine Command (TRADOC).  The following year TRADOC began consolidating Signal Corps training at the Southeastern Signal School, Fort Gordon.  On 1 July 1974, by TRADOC orders, this school became “The U. S. Army Signal School.”  The signal school at Fort Monmouth continued to operate for a time as “The U. S. Army Communications-Electronics School,” but only because it took some time to affect the transfer of equipment and personnel. Fort Monmouth’s last class in signal communication graduated on 17 June 1976.

Signal School Transfer 

With the Army's reorganization in 1962, the U.S. Army Signal Center and School (USASCS) had been transferred to the U.S. Army Continental Command (USACONARC).  The school, however, was still physically located at Fort Monmouth.  The old troika of the post, school and laboratory, formed in September 1919, was broken up with the official closing and transfer of the school to Fort Gordon, Georgia, 31 October 1976.  The phase-out, begun in 1972, culminated with the graduation of the last class in signal communication on 17 June 1976.  

The movement of the school involved the transfer of only 89 civilians who had elected to accompany the school.  More than 700 others were either reassigned to other agencies on post or retired.  

